UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 7 03 5LP 28 PH 1252
901 NORTH FIFTH STREET. .
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 66101 ="'

REGIDHAL

BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATOR

IN THE MATTER OF

Wamego Sand Company, Inc., d/b/a Docket No. CWA-07-2009-0104

Midwest Concrete Matérials Company . '

701 South 4™ Street " |

Manhattan, Kansas 66505 CONSENT AGREEMENT/
FINAL ORDER

‘ Respondent

. Proceedings under Section 309(g) of the -
Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 7 {Complainant) and
‘Wamego Sand Company, Inc., d/b/a Midwest Concrete Materials Company (Respondent) have
agreed fo a settlement of this action before the filing of a complaint, and thus this action is
simultaneously commenced and concluded pursuant to Rules 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) of the
Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,
Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation, Termination or
Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2).

ALLEGATIONS
Jurisdiction
1. This is an administrative action for the assessment of civil penalties instituted pursuant
to Section 309(g) of the Federal Water Poliution Contiol Act, commonly referred to as the Clean
Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and in accordance with'the Consolidated Rules of
Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation,

Termination or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, -

2. This Consent Agreenient and Final Order (CAFO) serves as notice that EPA has
reason to believe that Respondent has violated Sections 301 and 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.
§ 1311 and § 1342, and regulations promuigated thereinder.
| Parties

3, The authority to take action under Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 13 19(2)‘, is
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vested in the Administrator of EPA. The Adzﬁinistrator has delegated this authority to the. .
" Regional Administrator, EPA, Region 7, who in turn has delegated it to the Director of the
Water, Wetlands and Pesticides Division of EPA, Region 7{Complainant). ‘

4. Respondent is Wamego Sand Company, Inc., d/b/a Midwest Concrete Materials Co., a
corporation incorporated under the laws of Kansas and authorized to conduct business in the
State of Kansas. ' ' :

Statutory and Regulatory Fra:meWork

5. Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of poliutants
" except in compliance with, inter alia, Section 402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. Section 402 of
. the CWA, provides that pollutants may be dischatged only in accordance with the terms of a
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued pursuant to that
Section. , : ‘

6. The CWA prohibits the discharge of “pollutants” from a “point source” into a
“navigable water” of the United States, as these terms are defined by Section 502 of the CWA,
33 U.8.C. § 1362. S ' g

7. Section 402(p) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(p), sets forth requirements forthe
issuance of NPDES permits for the discharge of stormwater. Section 402(p) of the CWA,
requires, in part, that a discharge of stormwater associated with an industrial activity must
confortn with the requirements of an NPDES permit issued pursuant to Sections 301 and 402 of
the CWA. ‘ '

8. Parsuant to Section 402(p) of the CWA, EPA promulgated regulations setting forth -
the NPDES permit requirements for stormwater discharges at 40 C.F.R. § 122.26. -

9. 40 C.FR. § 122.26(&)(1)(ii) and 122.26(c) requires dischargers of stprmwatér
associated with industrial activity to apply for an individual permit or 10 seck coverage under a
" promulgated stormwater general permit. : '

10. 40 CE.R. § 122.26(b)(14)(ii) defines “stormwater discharge associated with
industrial activity”, in patt, as facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classification 32 (Stone,
Clay, Glass, and Concrete Products).

11. The Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) is the state agency with
the authority to administer the federal NPDES program in Kansas pursuant to Séction 402 of the
CWA. EPA maintains concurrent enforcement authority with authorized states for violations of
the CWA., : '

12. KDHE implemented a General Permit for the discharge of stormwater under the
NPDES, on September 1, 2006. The permit governs stormwater discharges associated with
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- industrial activity for asphalt plants, concrete batch plants, crushing plants and construction sand
. and gravel facilities. . '
‘ Factual Background

13. Respondent is a “person” as defined by Section 502(5) of the CWA, 33 US.C.
§ 1362(3). : :

14. At all times celevant to this action, Respondent was the owner and/ox operator of a
facility known as Midwest Concrete Materials Company, Jocated at 701 South 4" Street,
Manhattan, Kansas, 665053 (the Facility) with SIC codes of 3273, 1442 and 1794.

’ 15. Stormwater, snow melt, surface drainage and runoff water leaves Respo'ndent’s
facility and flows into an unnamed tributary of the Kansas River. The runoff and drainage from
Respondent’s facility is “stormwater” as defined by 40 CF.R. § 122 26(b)(13).

16. Stormwater contains “polluténts” as defined by Section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 |
U.S.C. § 1362(6). ‘ _ ‘

17. The Site has “stormwatér discharges associated with industrial activity” as defined
by 40 C.F.R. § 122.26(b)(14}(x), and is a “point source” as defined by Section 502(14) of the
CWA, 33 US.C. § 1362(14). : . .

_ 18. Respondent discharged pollutants info a tributary of the Kansas River. The Kansas
River is a “navigable water” as defined by CWA Qection 502, 33 U.S.C § 1362

19. Stormwater runoff from Reépondent’s in‘dustrial‘ activity results in thé addition of
pollutants from a point source 10 navigable waters, and thus is the “discharge of a pollutant” as
defined by CWA Section 502(12), 33 U.8.C. § 1362(12). '

20. Respondent’s discharge of pollutants associated with an industrial activity, as defined
by 40 CF.R. § 122.26(b)(14)(i1), requires a permit issued pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA,
33 U.8.C. § 1342, '

, 21, Respondent applied for and was issued NPDES permit coverage under the general -
permit described in Paragraph 12 above. KDHE issued the Respondent NPDES Permit No. '

KSC110127, which became effective on October 1, 2007. The permit governs stormwater
discharges.associated with industrial activity.

72, On June 26, 2008, EPA performed an inspection of the Site under the authority of
Section 308(a) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 13 18(a). The purpose of the inspection was to evaluate
the management of stormwater at the site in accordance with the CWA.
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Findings of Violation
Count1
| Failure to Comply with Effluent Limitations
23, The facts stated in Paragraphs 13 &uough 22 above are hereiﬁ inoorporated. |

24. Part A of Reépondent’s'NPDES perrﬁit establishes the discharge limit for pHas 6.0 -
* 10 9.0 Standard Units (“SU”). ‘ : '

25. The EPA inspection referenced in Paragraph 22 dbove, documented thai Respondent
had violated the effluent limitations of Respondent’s NPDES permit. A review of the
Respondent’s Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) revealed that Respondent’s discharge
exceeded the efftient limitation for pH as follows: : :

Date pH Limit * Reported pH Value
February 2005 6.0 10 9.0 U 11480
June 2005 6.010 9.0 SU 12480
September 2005 6.0t09.0SU 12,4 SU
-December 2005 6.0 to 9.0 5U 123 8U .
March 2006 - 6.0 t0 9.0 SU - 124 8U
August2006 . 6.0t09.08U 12.38U
November 2006  6.0t0 9.0 58U 12.28U
December 2006 6.0t0 9.0 SU 123 8U
February 2007 6.0 to 9.0 SU 12.18U
July 2007 . 6.0 10 9.0 SU 12.08U
September 2007 6.0 t0 9.0 SU 12.08U -
December 2007 6.0t 9.0SU 12380 .
March 2008 6.0109.08U 12480 -
June 2008 . 60t09.08U 123850 -
October 2008 6.0 t0 9.0 SU 9.5 SU

26. Part A of Respondent’s NPDES permit establishes a discharge limit for TSS of 100
mg/L. '

27. The EPA inspection referenced in Paragraph 22 above, documented that Respondent
had violated the effluent limit violations of Respondent’s NPDES permit. A review of the
Respondent’s DMRs revealed that Respondent’s discharge exceeded the effluent limitation for
TSS as follows: - ' ' L
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Date ~ Limit Reported Value
November 2006 100 mg/L 664 mg/L :
December 20006 100 mg/L - 185 mg/L
© December 2007 100 mg/L. : 131 mg/L
June 2008 100 mg/L. 181 mg/L

28. Part A of Respondent’s NPDES permit establishes the discharge limit for Oil and.
Grease (O/G) of 15 mg/L. . . o

29, The EPA inspection referenced in Paragraph 22 above, documented that Respondent
had violated the effluent limit violations of Respondent’s NPDES permit. A review of the ‘
Respondent’s DMRs revealed that Respondent’s discharge exceeded the effluent limitation for
O/G as follows:

Q_éi;;, ' " Limit : Reported Value
July 2007 15 mg/L 15.5 mg/L

30. Respondent’s discharge of pH, TSS and O/G in excess of the permit limitis a
violation of the terms and conditions of the Respondent’s NPDES permit, and as such is a
violation of Sections 301(a) and 402 of the CWA, 22 U.S.C. § 131 I{a) and § 1342, and. -
implementing regulations. ‘ _

Count 2
Failure to Comply with Sampling, Réporting and Recordkeeping Requirements
31. The facts stated in Paragraphs 13 through 22 above are herein incorporated.

32. Part A of Respondent’s NPDES Permit states that if a discharge occurs at any time
during any monitoting period, the Respondent shall sample and test the discharge according to
the requirements in the table of Part A of Respondent’s NPDES permit. :

33. The EPA inspection referenced in Paragraph 22 above, documented that Respondent
had violated the sampling requirements of Respondent’s NPDES permit. A review of the .
Respondent’s DMRs revealed that Respondent failed to sample for sulfate.and chioride for the
second, third and fourth quarters of 2005. '

34, Respondent’s failure to sample discharges quarterly for all paramegtets is a violation
of Respondent’s permit, and as stich, is a violation of Sections 301(a) and 402(p) of the CWA, 33
U.S.C. §§ 1311(a) and 1342(p), and implementing regulations.

35. Part C, Sec’_cion 7 of the Respondent’s NPDES Permit requires the facility to submit a
written notification to KDHE within five days of becoming aware of any noncompliance with the
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daily maximum discharge limits listed in the permit.

_ 16. BPA’s review of the documentation submitted to KDHE revealed that Respondent
failed to notify KDHE of pH, TSS and O/G permit exceedances within five days of becoming
aware of the noncomipliance from 2005 to 2008.

37, Respondent’s failure to notify KDHE of permit exceedances within five days of
becoming aware of noncompliance is a violation of Respondent’s permit, and as such, is a
violation of Sections 301(a) and 402(p) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311(a) and 1342(p), and
implementing regulations. - '

38, Part C, Section 5 of Respondent’s NPDES permit requires that the records and
information resulting from monitoring required by Respondent’s permit be retained fora
minimum of three years.

39, The EPA inspection referenced in Paragraph 22 above, revealed that the‘Respdndent
failed o maintain records of monitoring reports on-site for the years 2005, 2006, and 2007.

‘ 40. Respondent’s failure 16 maintain records of monitoring reports for a minimum of
three years is a violation of Respondent’s permit, and as such, is a violation of Sections 301(a)
and 402(p) of the CWA, 33 US.C. §§ 1311(a) and 1342(p), and implementing regulations.

Count 3
Failure to Amend Stormwater Poliution Prevention Plan ("SWPPP”)
41, The facts stated in Paragraphs 13 through 22 above are herein incofpoi&ted.

47. Part B, Section 9 of Respondent’s NPDES Permit states that Respondent’s SWPPP

shall be re-evaluated and modified if inspection or monitoring of stormwater discharges indicates
that the SWPPP appears to be ineffective in eliminating or significantly minimizing the ‘
discharge of poflutants from the facility.

43: The EPA inspection referenced in Paragraph 22 above, revealed that pollutants were
being discharged from Respondent’s facility. Respondent’s SWPPP had not been amended to
eliminate or significantly minimize pollutants from leaving the facility.

44, Respondent’s failure to amend the fequirements of Respondent’s SWPPPisa
violation of Respondent’s permit, and as such, is a violation of Sections 301(a) and 402(p) of the
CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311(a) and 1342(p), and implementing regulations.
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Count 4
Failare to Implement Stormwater Polfution Prevention Plan
45, The facts stated in Paragraphs 13 through 22 above are herein incorporated.

-46.' The EPA inspecﬁou referencéd in Paragraph 22 above, revealed that the Respondent’
 failed to document employee training from 2005 to 2008, as required by Respondent’s SWPPP.

In addition, Respondent failed to send out the annual reminder to employees on spill prevention
from 2005 to 2008, as required by Respondent’s SWPPP.

47. Respondeht’s failure to implement the requirements of Respondént’é SWPPP is a
violation of Respondent’s permit, and as such, is a violation of Sections 301(2) and 402(p) of the
CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311(a) and 1342(p), and implementing regulations.

Count 5
Failure to Document Facility Inspections
48. The facts stated in Paragraphs 13 through 22 above are herein incorporated.

49, Part B, 10 of Respondent’s NPDES Permit requires Respondent to inspect the
facility’s system of stormwater controls on a quarterly basis and within 24 hours after any
tainfall event of 2 inches or more or other event which could reasonably be expected to affect the
integrity of the controls. - o

50. Part B, 10 of Respondent’s NPDES Permit requires Respondent to complete an .
information report for each inspection which shall include: the inspection date, inspection
personnel, scope of the inspection, major observations, and revisions needed in the SWPPP. The
repott shall be maintained on site as part of SWPPP for inspection by EPA or KDHE personnel.

51. The EPA inspection referenced in Paragraph 22 above, revealed that Respondent
failed to document inspections of stormwater controls from June 2005 to June 2008, as required
by Respondent’s NPDES permit. o :

52. Respondent’s failure to document facility inspections and retain such documentation. .
in accordance with permit requirements.is a violation of Respondent’s permit, and as such, isa
violation of Sections 301(a) and 402(p) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311(a) and 1342(p), and
implementing regulations. ~ :
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CONSENT AGREEMENT

53. Based on the foregoing Findings of Violation, and pursuant to Section 309(g) of the
CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), EPA, Region 7 hereby proposes to issue a Final Order assessing an
administrative penalty against the Respondent for the violations cited above, in the amount of
$95,000. : ‘

'54. Respondent and EPA agree to the terms of this CAFO and Respondent agrees to
comply with the terms of the Final Order portion of this CAFO.

55. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations of this CAFO and agrees not to
contest EPA’s jurisdiction in this proceeding ot any subsequent proceeding to enforce the terms
of the Final Order portion of this CA¥O. ‘ ‘

56. Respondent neither admits nor denies the facfuai allegations and legal conclusions
asserted by EPA in the Factual Background and Findings of Violation sections set forth above.

57. Respbndent waives its right to a judicial or administrative hearing on any issue of
fact or law set forth above, and its right to appeal the Final Order portion of this CAFO. -

o 58. Respondent and Complainant agree to conciliate the matiers set forth in this CAFO
without the necessity of a formal hearing and agree to bear their own costs and attorney’s fees
incurred as a result of this action. ' '

' 59. The undersigned representative of Respondent certifies that he or she is fully
authotized to enter the terms and conditions of this CAFO and to execute and legally bind
Respondent to it. ' ‘

60. Nothing contained in the Final Order portion of this CAFO shall alter or otherwise
affect Respondent’s obligation to comply with all applicable federal, state and local
environmental statutes and regulations and applicable permits.

_ 61. This CAFO addresses all civil and édministrativé claims for the CWA violations -
jdentified above. Complainant reserves the right to take any enforcement action with respect t0
any other violations of the CWA or any other applicable law. -

62. Respondent certifies by the :signing of this CAFO that to the best of its &owledge,
Respondent’s facility is in compliance with all requitements of Sections 301 and 402 of the
CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311 and 1342. ‘

63. The effect of settlement described in Paragraph 61 above is cbmﬁtional upon the
accuracy of the Respondent’s representations {o BPA, as memorialized in Paragraph 62 above, of
this CAFO.
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64. Respondent agtees that, in settlement of the claims élleged in this CAFO,
Respondent shall pay a penalty of $95,000 as set forth in Paragraph 1 of the Final Order.

- 65. Respondent understands that failure to pay any portion of the civil penalty on the
date the same is due may result in the commencement of a civil action in Federal District Court
to collect said penalty, along with interest thereon at the applicable statutory rate.

FINAL ORDER
I’ajrment Procedures

Pursuant to the authority of Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1319(), and
‘according to terms of this CAFQ, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

1. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of Ninety-Five Thousand Dollars (§95,000} to be
paid in full no later than 30 days after the effective date of this CAFO.

2. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 13.18, failure to make any payment according to the above
schedule will automatically accelerate the debt which will become due and owing in full, -
immediately. Interest on any late payment will be assessed at the annual rate established by the
Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717.. The interest will be assessed on any -
overdue amount from the due date through the date of payment. Failuze to pay the civil penalty
when due may result in the commencement of a civil action in Federal District Court to collect
said penalty, together with costs and interest. : '

3. Payment of the penalty shall be by cashier ot certified check made payable to the '
“United States Treasury” and remitted to: ' '

U.S: Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077 j -

St. Louis, Missouri 63197-900

This payment shall reference docket number CWA-07-2009-0104,
Copies of the check shall be mailed to:

Kristen Nazar ‘

Assistant Regional Counsel ‘

U.S. Bnvironmental Protection Agency — Region 7
901 North 5th Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101



Wamego Sand Company, ., df/a Midwest Concrete Materials Compasny
Consent Agreement/Final Order ‘

CWA 07-2009-0104
Page 100f 13
and to
‘Kathy Robihsbn
Regional Hearing Cletk
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 7
901 North Sth Street '

Kansas City, Kansas 66101.

4, No pprtién of the civil penaity or interest paid by Respondent puréuant to the -
requirements of this CAFO shall be claimed by Respondent as a deduction for federal, state, or
local income tax purposes. ' -

Parties Bound

5, This Final Order portion of this CAFO shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent
and Respondent’s agenis, successors and/or assigns. Respondent shall ensure that all
contractors, employees, consultants, firms or other persons or entities acting for Respondent with
respect to matters included herein comply with the terms of this CAFO. S

General Provisions

. 6. Notwithstanding any other provision of this CAFO, EPA reserves the right to enforce

the terms of the Final Order portion of this CAFO by initiating a judicial or administrative action
pursuant to Section 309 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319, and to seek penalties against Respondent
or to seek any other remedy allowed by law. L ‘

7. Conplainant reserves the right to take enforceient action against Respondent for any
futue violations of the CWA. and its implementing regulations and to enforce the terms and
conditions of this CAFO. '

8. This Order shall be entéred and become effective only after the conclusion of the
period of public notice and comment required pursuant to Section 309(g)(4) of the CWA, 33
U.S.C. § 1319(2)(4), and 40 C.F.R. § 22.45. Unless otherwise stated, all time periods stated
_ herein shall be calculated in calendar days from such date. ' :

9. Respondent and Cqmpiainant shall bear their respective costs and attorney’s fees.

10. The headings in this CAFO are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect .
interpretation of this CAFO. : : . ;
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COMPLAINANT
u.s. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

qagn

Water, Wetlands and Pesticides Dmszon
U.S. Envirommental Protection Agency

Region 7
9)23 /a8 M/t/%/h
Date ' Kristen Nazar ,V
‘ " Assistant Regional Counisel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 7 '
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RESPONDENT:
WAMEGO SAND COMPANY, INC., d/b/a
MIDWEST CONCRETE MATERIALS COMPANY

Y | /7/“,/%%4/

Diate

| }Qarﬁe-(Print) 0/ c;> //ﬁ / Awoém (a;)
Title /gez 5 j&ﬂ wr
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IT IS SO ORDERED. 'This Final Order shall become effective immediately.

/M%WM o fw% z%;@@cz

Rdbert Patrick Date
Regional Judicial Officer




IN THE MATTER OF Wamego Sand Company, Inc., d/b/a Midwest Concrete Materials
Company, Respondent
Docket No. CWA-07-2009-0104

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certlfy that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement/ Fmal Order
was sent this day in the following manner to the addressees:

Copy hand delivered to
Attorney for Complainant:

Kristen Nazar

Assistant Regional Counsel

Region VII

United States Environmental Protection Agency
901 N. 5™ Street

Kansas City, Kansas 6610}

Copy by Certified Mail Return Receipt to;

- John L. Eichman, President

Wamego Sand Company, Inc.

D/b/a Midwest Concrete Materials Company
701 South 4" Street

Manhattan, Kansas 66505

Dated: M ‘ \m@;’@m@y\»

Kathy Robinson
Hearing Clerk, Region 7




